Wednesday, 9 April 2014
2.00 pm

Smith Square 1&2, Ground Floor, Local
Government House, Smith Square, London,
SW1P 3HZ

Guidance notes for visitors
Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ
Welcome!
Please read these notes for your own safety and that of all visitors, staff and tenants.
Security
All visitors (who do not already have an LGA ID badge), are requested to report to the Reception
desk where they will be asked to sign in and will be handed a visitor’s badge to be worn at all times
whilst in the building.
Fire instructions
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the green Fire Exit
signs. Go straight to the assembly point in Tufton Street via Dean Trench Street (off Smith Square).
DO NOT USE THE LIFTS.
DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT PERSONAL BELONGINGS.
DO NOT RE-ENTER BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.
Open Council
“Open Council”, on the 1st floor of LG House, provides informal
meeting and business facilities with refreshments, for local authority members/
officers who are in London.
Toilets
Toilets for people with disabilities are situated on the Basement, Ground, 2nd, 4th, 6th and 7th floors.
Female toilets are situated on the basement, ground, 1st, 3rd, 5th and 7th floors. Male toilets are
available on the basement, ground, 2nd, 4th, 6th and 8th floors.
Accessibility
Every effort has been made to make the building as accessible as possible for people with
disabilities. Induction loop systems have been installed in all the larger meeting rooms and at the
main reception. There is a parking space for blue badge holders outside the Smith Square entrance
and two more blue badge holders’ spaces in Dean Stanley Street to the side of the building. There is
also a wheelchair lift at the main entrance. For further information please contact the Facilities
Management Helpdesk on 020 7664 3015.
Further help
Please speak either to staff at the main reception on the ground floor, if you require any further help
or information. You can find the LGA website at www.local.gov.uk
Please don’t forget to sign out at reception and return your badge when you depart.

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014
There will be a meeting of the LGA Leadership Board at 2.00 pm on Wednesday, 9 April 2014
Smith Square 1&2, Ground Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.
Attendance Sheet:
Please ensure that you sign the attendance register, which will be available in the meeting room. It
is the only record of your presence at the meeting.
Political Group meetings:
The group meetings will take place from 10.00 -11.00am. Please contact your political group as
outlined below for further details.
Apologies:
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to
attend this meeting.
Labour:
Conservative:
Liberal Democrat:
Independent:

Aicha Less:
Luke Taylor:
Group Office:
Group Office:

020 7664 3263
020 7664 3264
020 7664 3235
020 7664 3224

email: aicha.less@local.gov.uk
email: luke.taylor@local.gov.uk
email: libdem@local.gov.uk
email: Vanessa.Chagas@local.gov.uk

Location:
A map showing the location of Local Government House is printed on the back cover.
LGA Contact:
Cathy Boyle
Guest WiFi in Local Government House
This is available in Local Government House for visitors. It can be accessed by enabling “Wireless
Network Connection” on your computer and connecting to LGH-guest, the password is
Welcome2010LG.
Carers’ Allowance
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of up to £6.31 per hour is
available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly people or people with disabilities)
incurred as a result of attending this meeting.

LGA Leadership Board

LGA Leadership Board – Membership 2013/2014
Councillor
Conservative ( 3)
Cllr Gary Porter (Vice Chairman)
Cllr Andrew Lewer MBE (Deputy
Chairman)
Cllr Robert Light (Deputy
Chairman)

Authority

South Holland District Council
Derbyshire County Council
Kirklees Metropolitan Council

Substitutes

Labour ( 4)
Cllr David Sparks OBE (Vice
Chairman)
Cllr Sharon Taylor OBE (Deputy
Chairman)
Mayor Sir Steve Bullock (Deputy
Chairman)
Cllr Keith Wakefield (Deputy
Chairman)

Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council
Stevenage Borough Council
Lewisham London Borough Council
Leeds City Council

Substitutes

Liberal Democrat ( 2)
Cllr Gerald Vernon-Jackson
(Vice Chairman)
Mayor Dorothy Thornhill MBE
(Deputy Chairman)

Portsmouth City Council
Watford Borough Council

Substitutes

Independent ( 1)
Cllr Marianne Overton MBE
Substitutes

Lincolnshire County Council

Agenda
LGA Leadership Board
Wednesday 9 April 2014
2.00 pm
Smith Square 1&2, Ground Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ

1.

Item

Page

PART 1: LGA BUSINESS

Page

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Robert Light, Kirklees Council, declared a personal nonprejudicial interest in Item 3 (Audit Transitional Body), as he is a
member of the Audit Commission.
Mayor Sir Steve Bullock, Lewisham Council, declared a personal nonprejudicial interest in Item 14 (Local Government House Review) as he
is a member of XXXX
Property Board.

2.

Queen's Speech 2014 (see LGA Executive agenda)

1-8

3.

Audit Transitional Body (see LGA Executive agenda)

9 - 12

4.

Sector-led Improvement Evaluation (see LGA Executive agenda)

13 - 26

5.

LGA Proportionality for 2014/15

27 - 32

6.

LGA Annual Conference & Exhibition 2014

33 - 48

7.

General Assembly 8 July 2014 - Outline Programme

49 - 52

8.

Chief Executive's Monthly Report - April 2014

53 - 58

9.

LGA Forward Plan

59 - 64

10.

LGA Executive Agenda

PART 2: CONFIDENTIAL

Page

11.

Note of the last meeting

65 - 70

12.

First 100 Days [verbal update]

71 - 72

13.

LGA Commerical Strategy

73 - 106

14.

Local Government House Review

107 - 113

Date of Next Meeting: Wednesday, 14 May 2014, 2.00 pm, Smith Square
1&2, Ground Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P
3HZ

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Queen’s Speech 2014
Purpose of the Report
To inform Leadership Board of those Bills the LGA expects to be announced in the
forthcoming Queen’s Speech, for the 2014/15 parliamentary session.
To put forward recommendations for consideration as to which Bills should be prioritised
by the LGA for lobbying.
Summary
The paper offers members an early sight of legislation of relevance to member councils
which officers expect to be included in the 2014 Queen’s Speech on 3 June 2014. The
paper the bills and includes suggested prioritisation.

Recommendation
To approve the suggested priority Bills for the LGA. This will identify where our resources
should be focussed to ensure we deliver the best possible outcomes for the local
government sector on forthcoming legislation.
Action
As applicable.

Contact officer:

Laurence Meehan

Position:

Head of Campaigns and External Communications

Phone no:

020 7664 3127

E-mail:

laurence.meehan@local.gov.uk

Page 1

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Queen’s Speech 2014
Expected legislation of relevance to local government
Deregulation Bill
1.

Published for pre-legislative scrutiny1 during the 2013/14 session, this Bill has been
positioned by Whitehall as “the latest step in the Government’s ongoing drive to
remove unnecessary bureaucracy that costs British businesses millions, slows down
public services like schools and hospitals and hinders millions of individuals in their
daily lives”. As detailed in our written2 and oral evidence during the pre-legislative
scrutiny process, the proposals published in the draft Bill are largely uncontentious
for local government, and in some instances welcomed. However the Bill could go
further, and (given the breadth of the legislation) offers the opportunity for us to put
forward recommendations for additional clauses reflecting long standing LGA
positions.

2.

The Bill was published in February 2014 and is expected to be carried over into the
new session. We are working proactively to promote a range of amendments,
covering areas in the Bill such as housing (specifically Right to Buy) and waste. In
respect to the latter, we are opposed to measures in the Bill related to the decriminalisation of household waste. Currently, under the Environmental Protection
Act 1990 a waste collection authority may by notice require occupiers of premises to
present their household waste for collection in a specified way. Failure, without
reasonable excuse, to comply with such a requirement is an offence under the Act
and a fixed penalty may be offered as an alternative to prosecution. The
Deregulation Bill includes provisions to amend the Environmental Protection Act
1990, removing the offence in relation to England. In addition to amendments, we
are pursuing the possibility of new clauses on subjects related to Rewiring Public
Services such as licensing reform and removal of the housing borrowing cap. We
are also looking to table amendments on abolishing the legal duty on local
authorities to publish statutory notices in local newspapers.

Local Government Ombudsman Bill
3.

The Government announced on 29 November 2013 that an independent review3 of
the Local Government Ombudsman4 had recommended significant reforms. The
Government accepted the review’s conclusions5 that the governance arrangements

1

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/draft-deregulation-bill
Available at
http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/5533246/LGA+submission+to+draft+Deregulation+Bill+Ctte.pdf/89fa
0a87-ee80-44d5-a286-d6c333968df9
3
Details available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/governance-review-of-the-local-governmentombudsman-service
4
http://www.lgo.org.uk/
5
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/governance-review-of-the-local-government-ombudsmanservice
2

Page 2

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

of the Ombudsman service should be modernised, moving “to a single Local
Government Ombudsman for England, providing robust and consistent leadership,
driving up performance and ensuring that the public can obtain swift redress when
things go wrong”6. The recommendations of the review included seeking “an early
opportunityBto make the limited legislative changes to provide for a single Local
Government Ombudsman in England.” It will be important for the LGA to review this
legislation when published and assess whether any amendments should be sought.
Parking legislation
4.

The Government has over the last six months been debating the issue of parking
and is pushing to amend the current legislation to remove the ability of councils to
enforce parking through the use of CCTV. In February, responding to a linked media
story, DCLG publically state that they had “recently published proposals to ban
CCTV for parking. Subject to the consultation process, the Government will then
amend legislation and associated statutory guidance to deliver on this pledge.”
Officers believe that the majority of the Government’s intended reforms will be done
through secondary regulations and amendments to guidance. However, we believe,
as does the British Parking Association, that banning CCTV and implementing
reforms around the adjudication process almost certainly would require amendments
to primary legislation. Should such primary legislation come forward or an
amendment be introduced through another legislative vehicle, we would campaign
against the proposal (in line with the position agreed by the Economy and Transport
Board).

Childcare costs
5.

There were reports in March 2014 of government plans to introduce primary
legislation through the Queen’s speech to tackle the cost of childcare. These reports
stated that legislation will be brought forward “that will see parents handed a tax-free
childcare scheme. The programme, to be phased in from next year, will see parents
handed support worth up to £1,200 a year.” Following these reports, the Chancellor
announced in his Budget on 19 March that, from September 2015, households
where both parents work will benefit from an extension to the tax free childcare
scheme worth up to £2,000 (up from £1,200) for children up to age 12 (brought
forward from 2020).

6.

As detailed in our Budget On The Day Briefing, childcare costs can still be far too
high for many, with significant numbers of parents receiving no support if they
choose to return to work. Any support to help make these costs more affordable is
welcome. All eligible parents with children under 12, and disabled children under the
age of 17, will be able to receive support within the first year of the scheme’s
operation and the LGA welcomes the extended definition of parents treated as being
in work, for example, to cover those on unpaid statutory maternity, paternity and
adoption leave and those in receipt of ‘credits only’ Employment and Support
Allowance.

6

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/ombudsman-to-offer-better-public-redress-service

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Consumer Rights Bill
7.

The Government believes that UK consumer law is currently unnecessarily complex,
ambiguous and has not kept up with technological developments, particularly sale of
goods via the internet. The aim of this Bill is to propose a simple, modern framework
of consumer rights to help consumers and their advocates understand their rights
when things go wrong. The Business, Innovation and Skills Select Committee
conducted pre-legislative scrutiny of the draft Bill during the 2012/13 session. We
raised concerns about proposals in the Bill which could weaken the ability of councils
to tackle rogue traders by reforming powers of entry. We also highlighted issues
around introducing minimum competency standards for trading standards officers.

8.

The Bill was published in January 2014 and will be carried over into the new session.
As a result of our campaigning, the Government amended the legislation to take into
account our concerns during draft legislative scrutiny. The LGA briefed in support of
the Bill at Second Reading, welcoming the Government’s amendments and
highlighting the important role of trading standards to ensure strong local economies.

Highways Agency Bill
9.

Within the command paper entitled Action for Roads7, published July 2013, the
Government committed to introducing legislation in 2014 which would provide a
stable funding basis for investment in roads and legal powers for the new Highways
Agency.

10.

The paper states that, from 2015 onwards, the Highways Agency will have long-term
funding certainty on its capital programme and resource maintenance, initially to
2021. In addition, the Government will introduce a Roads Investment Strategy (RIS),
setting out plans for construction and maintenance to 2021 and beyond, as well as
performance criteria. It will also cover expectations for the operation and
management of the network. The requirements of the funding settlement and RIS
will be confirmed within legislation, which will be introduced alongside wider reforms
to the Highways Agency, converting the body from its present form as an executive
agency into a strategic highways company. This body will be 100%-owned by the
state, but (Whitehall argues) will be free from many of the red tape requirements of
being a part of central government.

Criminal Courts and Justice Bill
11.

7

The Bill was introduced into Parliament in February 2014 and could be another carry
over Bill. Ahead of Second Reading, we briefed in support of certain provisions in the
Bill which are designed to speed up the planning system with the establishment of a
specialist planning court for major applications. We also supported the provisions in
the Bill to entitle 17 year olds to an appropriate adult if they are given a youth caution
or youth conditional caution. However, this reform has resource implications for local
authorities and, therefore, we are calling for this new provision to be properly funded
as a New Burden.

Available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/action-for-roads-a-network-for-the-21st-century

Page 4

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Modern Slavery Bill
12.

The Bill was published in draft on 16 December 2013 and aims to tackle human
trafficking. It will be a consolidation Bill that will bring together several other pieces of
older legislation that now need updating to tackle recent criminal activity on
trafficking. The Bill aims to increase the maximum custodial sentence for offenders
from 14 years to life. The draft Bill seeks to create a new post of anti-slavery
commissioner to hold law enforcement and other organisations to account. Clause
35 of the draft Bill seeks to apply to Local Authorities a new “Duty to Report”
potential victims of trafficking to the National Crime Agency.

Pensions Bill
13. A new Pensions Bill is expected in the final session of this Parliament. It was
reported in January that Ministers are intending to introduce legislation allowing
‘collective’ pensions arrangements. Pensions Minister Steve Webb is reported to
have said that he wants a bill in the next Queen's Speech to bring in the system,
which sees workers' contributions pooled, with the risks and rewards spread out
evenly. The media reported that these schemes have previously been criticised
because they do not offer a guaranteed income. Measures relating to collective
pension arrangements will only impact upon private sector pensions.
14.

In the Budget on 19 March, the Chancellor announced: greater flexibility for defined
contribution pension savers when deciding how to take their accumulated pension
pot from March 27; legislation to simplify or remove the remaining restrictions on
taking pensions as lump sums rather than annuity by April 2015; a consultation on
the impact of these measures on defined benefit schemes (with a closing date of 11th
June 2014); and legislation to remove the right to transfer benefits from defined
benefit public service schemes to private sector defined contribution schemes by
April 2015.

15.

Although the Local Government Pension Scheme and Teachers Pension Scheme
appear to be ring fenced from these changes the LGA will consider how best to
respond to the consultation in order to ensure both schemes provide for secure
pensions in retirement and the effective long term investment of LGPS assets.
Officers will review the legislation once published to make a comprehensive
assessment of any impact on member authorities and undertake parliamentary
activities should a greater impact be realised.

Wales Bill
16.

The draft Wales Bill, published8 during the 2013/14 session, proposed reforms to
enable devolved governance in Wales to become more accountable.

17.

The draft Wales Bill proposes to implement recommendations from the Silk
Commission’s first report9 on the devolution of tax and borrowing powers to the
National Assembly for Wales and the Welsh Government. These changes would
give Wales more fiscal autonomy, and make the Assembly and the Welsh
Government more accountable to people in Wales for raising the money they spend.

8
9

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/draft-wales-bill
http://commissionondevolutioninwales.independent.gov.uk/

Page 5

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

18. The proposals in the draft Bill to devolve tax-raising powers mean that spending
decisions made by the Assembly and the Welsh Government will, for the first time,
have consequences in terms of devolved taxation. The proposals also provide Welsh
Ministers with an independent funding stream to support their new capital borrowing
powers provided for in the draft Bill. These powers will enable the Welsh
Government to borrow to invest in renewing Wales’s infrastructure and support
growth in the Welsh economy. The Government’s proposals would enable the
Assembly to decide to trigger a referendum so that people in Wales can decide
whether some of their income tax should be devolved, in the same way as in
Scotland.
19.

The Bill itself was published on 20 March. In a written statement to Parliament,
Secretary of State for Wales Rt Hon David Jones MP said that the Bill10:“will provide
the Welsh Government and the National Assembly for Wales with more levers and
incentives to deliver greater economic growth in Wales. The Bill will make the Welsh
Government more accountable to the people of Wales, as it will be responsible not
only for the money it spends but also, for the first time, how it raises some of that
money. The Bill will also provide the Welsh Government with the mechanism to
borrow in order to fund improvements in Wales's infrastructure and reforms the
Assembly's electoral arrangements to make them fairer and more equitable.
Alongside the Bill the Command Paper, Wales Bill: Financial Empowerment and
Accountability explains the effects of the Finance elements in Part 2 of the Bill in
more detail and sets out further actions that the Government is taking, following the
recommendations of the Silk Commission's Part I report, that do not require
legislation.”

20.

The Bill’s passage through parliament will present us with an opportunity to support
fiscal devolution to Wales, whilst highlighting the ongoing disparity with English local
government, as noted within the Rewiring Public Services campaign.

Fire Bill
21.

At the time of writing, we are waiting for confirmation from the Government on the
intended timetabling for bringing forward the proposals of the Knight Review11. In
December 2012, ministers commissioned12 Sir Ken Knight, the outgoing Chief Fire
and Rescue Advisor (2007 to 2013), to conduct an independent review of efficiency
in the provision of fire and rescue in England. The resulting report, ‘Facing the future’
presented Sir Ken’s findings and was published13 in May 2013. The Government has
yet to publish its response, although officers are expecting the response to be in the
form of a white paper, with proposals for both legislative and non-legislative action.
The Government has indicated that there will be no available parliamentary time for
any fire related legislation during the final session, so it is unlikely that any legislative
measures associated with Sir Ken’s review will be brought forward this side of the
next General Election. The Communities and Local Government Select Committee

10

Full details available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wales-bill
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/facing-the-future
12
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-fire-chief-to-lead-efficiency-review-of-fire-and-rescue
11
13

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/200092/FINAL_Facing_the_Futu
re__3_md.pdf

Page 6

Agenda Item 2
LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

also held an inquiry into the Knight Review14 which we responded to with written and
oral evidence15. The Committee has yet to publish a report with its findings.
Prioritisation of Bills
22.

We have in previous years successfully prioritised those Bills on which to focus our
efforts and resources. It is suggested that this approach is undertaken again this
year in line with the corporate priorities for the coming year. This prioritisation will
ensure that, by focusing our lobbying work on key pieces of legislation, the best
results are achieved for member councils.

23.

Those Bills suggested as high priority will be activity lobbied on by the Public Affairs
team, supported by colleagues throughout the organisation. Medium priority bills will
be kept on a watching brief and picked up as specific issues arise which we may
want to brief on. Working with policy colleagues, the public affairs team will consider
each Bill on publication. If any Bill has a greater impact on councils than was
expected it will be given a higher priority.

24.

Based on an assessment of the implications of those Bills highlighted above, officers
recommended the following system of prioritisation (based on the assumption that all
Bills above are published within the Queen’s Speech):

High
Deregulation Bill
Local Government
Ombudsman Bill

Priority
Medium
Consumer Rights Bill
Highways Agency Bill

Parking

Modern Slavery Bill

Fire Bill

Criminal
Justice
Courts Bill
Wales Bill
Pensions Bill

25.

Low
Childcare costs

and

Following the publication of the Queen’s Speech on 3 June, an updated version of
this paper will return to Leadership Board should there be any additional items of
legislation, with relevance to local government, which require consideration.

14

http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-localgovernment-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/knight-review/
15
Written evidence available to download at: http://www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/briefings-and-responses//journal_content/56/10180/5990046/ARTICLE. Oral evidence available to watch online at:
http://www.parliamentlive.tv/Main/Player.aspx?meetingId=13786&st=17:08:25

Page 7

Page 8

Agenda Item 3

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Audit Transitional Body
Purpose of report
To update members on the decision by Ministers to ask the LGA to lead interim
arrangements for public sector audit following the closure of the Audit Commission on 31
March 2015.
Summary
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 amongst other things abolishes the Audit
Commission. A number of the Audit Commission’s functions have either ceased already or
will cease on 31 March 2015. Others will pass to other organisations such as the National
Audit Office. In addition, the Act recognised that there would be a need to establish a
Transitional Body to manage the existing external audit contracts that are in place and are
not due to end until 2017 at the earliest.
Local Government Minister Brandon Lewis announced on 21 March 2014 that the LGA will
lead interim arrangements for public sector audit after 2015.

Recommendation
That the Board welcomes the decision by Ministers to ask the LGA to establish the
Transitional Body to manage the existing external audit contracts.

Contact officer:

Dennis Skinner

Position:

Head of Leadership and Productivity

Phone no:

020 7664 3017

E-mail:

dennis.skinner@local.gov.uk

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Audit Transitional Body
Introduction
1.

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, which abolishes the Audit Commission
also establishes new arrangements for the auditing of local public bodies.

2.

A number of functions currently carried out by the Commission will need to be carried
out until full introduction of the new audit appointment arrangements from 2017 at the
earliest.

3.

The primary function to be performed following closure of the Audit Commission on 31
March 15 and the new arrangements coming into place in 2017 is the management of
the Commission’s contracts with private sector audit firms for the provision of audit and
related services for local bodies.

4.

The Audit Commission’s contracts cover audit work at over 800 principal bodies
including local government, NHS trusts, police bodies and fire authorities as well as c.
10,000 smaller authorities: mainly parishes but also internal drainage boards, joint
committees and others and their representative bodies.

5.

The contracts are due to expire on completion of the audits of the 2016/17 accounts,
unless they are extended to 2020.

Transitional body
6.

The functions and activities requiring management during this interim period can be
summarised as follows:
6.1

managing the Audit Commission’s various centrally procured contracts with
private sector audit firms for the provision of audit and related services for
principal and smaller bodies as well as support functions associated with 201415 audits; and

6.2

other audit-related activities currently undertaken by the Audit Commission.

7.

The ten audit contracts for principal bodies and four contracts for small bodies have a
combined annual value of £85 million. The intention is for these contracts to be
transferred to the designated transitional body in line with the closure of the Audit
Commission on 1 April 2015.

8.

The transitional body will need to operate certain key statutory functions currently held
by the Audit Commission. These broadly relate to the appointment of auditors and
terms of appointment (section 3 of the Audit Commission Act 1998), setting scales of

Page 10

Agenda Item 3

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

fees and determining variations to scale fees (section 7) and making arrangements for
the certification of claims and returns (section 28).
9.

The Audit Commission currently undertakes arrangements for certifying claims and
returns to local government bodies to government departments (in line with section 28
of the Audit Commission Act 1998).

10.

The majority of grant-paying departments or bodies are now working towards making
tripartite arrangements with local public bodies and auditors for any continuing
certification requirements beyond March 2015. However, there is one exception to this:
the Department for Work and Pensions’ Housing Benefit count certification. As the
implementation of Universal Credit will replace Housing Benefit, any new certification
arrangements (tripartite or self-certification) would have to be implemented on a
temporary basis. It is therefore proposed that the designated transitional body should
undertake this statutory function for Housing Benefit only on a time-limited basis.

11.

On 17 January 2014, the LGA were invited to submit a proposal to DCLG to be the
transitional body, which we did at the end of January. Our proposal in summary was
to set up an independent company to be the transitional body. The company would be
limited by guarantee with a board comprising directors having a mix of audit and
accountancy experience, experience of working in one or more of the sectors including
local government and health. Staff currently working at the Audit Commission carrying
out this work would transfer across to the LGA and would benefit from being able to
access our back office and wider support services.

12.

Our submission emphasised our excellent track record in establishing companies
including the Improvement and Development Agency as well as joint companies such
as Local Partnerships and Geoplace.

13.

In addition, our proposal suggested that we also take on responsibility for the Audit
Commission’s value for money profiles. The profiles are provided by the Audit
Commission to help auditors reach judgements on the extent to which councils have
effective value for money arrangements in place. The profiles are similar to LG Inform,
the LGA benchmarking tool.

14.

The Crown Commercial Service (part of the Cabinet Office) also submitted a proposal
to be the Transitional Body.

15.

On 21 March, Ministers announced that they were asking the LGA to create the
transitional body. They also announced that they were also transferring the value for
money profiles to the transitional body.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Implications
16.

A transitional programme board with the Audit Commission and DCLG is being set up
to take the work forward. Clearly, a company will now need to be established and
Board members appointed. Around 14 staff will transfer across via TUPE from the
Audit Commission at the end of March 2015.

17.

The costs of carrying out the role of the transitional body will be met as they are now
through the audit fees. Our submission to DCLG also made clear they we expected
the Audit Commission or DCLG to ensure any future financial liabilities are covered.
For example, redundancy costs that might arise at the end of the transitional period.

18.

Members may recall that the LGA was successful in getting a key amendment to the
Local Audit and Accountability Act agreed. The amendment allows for councils to optin to a form a national procurement as an alternative to councils individually procuring
their own external auditor post 2017. This would also have the advantage that
councils would not be required to set up an independent audit appointment panel and
save on procurement costs. The Audit Commission have estimated that the saving to
the sector overall if councils were to opt in to this option of national procurement could
save in the region of £200m over a 5 year period.

19.

The success of the LGA being asked to set up the transitional body means that this
body could continue beyond 2017 and provide the opportunity for councils to continue
to benefit from national procurement and the savings that such an option brings.

Page 12

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Sector-Led Improvement Evaluation
Purpose of report
For information and discussion.
Summary
In the run up to the General Election of 2010, and in the first few months afterwards, the LGA
lobbied political parties and then the Coalition Government to reduce the burden of
inspection on councils.
The Coalition Government responded by abolishing Comprehensive Area Assessments, the
use of resources judgement and organisational assessments. At the same time the
Government welcomed the stance led by the LGA that the sector would place more
emphasis on sector-led improvement.
Following extensive consultation with the sector, the LGA set out how sector-ledimprovement would work in practice, including the role of the LGA and our support offers
made available to local authorities. This included, at no cost, a peer challenge for every
council.
The Improvement and Innovation Board agreed at the time of launching sector-ledimprovement, that the programme should be evaluated.
This report brings together a summary of what the LGA has delivered in support of sectorled-improvement over the last 3 years together with the outcome of the evaluation.

Recommendations
That the Leadership Board:
i.
ii.

notes the comprehensive programme of support the LGA has provided for
councils; and
welcomes the findings from the evaluation of sector-led improvement.

Action
As directed by Members.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Contact officers:

Dennis Skinner /Juliet Whitworth / Kate Cooper

Position:

Head of Leadership and Productivity / Research Information
Manager / Senor Analyst

Phone no:

020 7664 3017 / 020 7664 3278 / 020 7664 3274

E-mail:

dennis.skinner@local.gov.uk / Juliet.whitworth@local.gov.uk /
Kate.Copper@local.gov.uk

Page 14

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Sector-Led Improvement Evaluation
Introduction
1. By the late 2000s, it was becoming increasing apparent that the top-down centralised
regime of holding councils accountable nationally rather than locally was leading to
diminishing returns. It had been estimated at the time that monitoring and inspection of
local government was costing the public purse £2 billion a year. Councils were needing
to employ increasing numbers of staff just to comply with the inspection burden and the
requirement to report information and data upwards to central government. The average
cost of each council reporting up to government was estimated on average as £1.8m in
2006.
2. The LGA’s campaign to reduce the burden of inspection on councils in the run up to the
last General Election was successful. The Coalition government abolished a number of
the inspection burdens and at the same time the LGA launched “Taking the Lead”, which
set out an approach to sector-led improvement based on the following key principles:
2.1. councils are responsible for their own performance and improvement and for leading
the delivery of improved outcomes for local people in their area;
2.2. councils are primarily accountable to local communities (not government or the
inspectorates) and stronger accountability through increased transparency helps
local people drive further improvement;
2.3. councils have a collective responsibility for the performance of the sector as a whole
(evidenced by sharing best practice, offering member and officer peers, etc.); and
2.4. the role of the LGA is to maintain an overview of the performance of the sector in
order to identify potential performance challenges and opportunities – and to provide
tools and support to help councils take advantage of this new approach.
Part 1: LGA Support Offer
3. In 2011, the LGA launched its support offer for sector-led improvement. It involved seven
key areas of support:
3.1. Support to help councils be more locally accountable;
3.2. Peer challenge – including an offer to all councils to provide a free of charge peer
challenge;
3.3. Peer support – for example up to 5 days of free member peer support for all councils
undergoing a change of control;

Page 15

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

3.4. The creation of the Knowledge Hub, a new web based service that would create a
single window to improvement in local government and allow people to share good
practice;
3.5. The development of a new data and benchmarking tool – LG Inform;
3.6. Leadership support for political and managerial leaders including one subsidised
place for every council, every year; and
3.7. Establishing and supporting networks of councillors and officers.
4. Almost three years on a huge amount of support has been provided by the LGA to local
authorities. All the promises we made at the time have been delivered and much more
on top.
5. Between April 2011 and March 2014 some of our key deliverables include:
5.1. Over 350 peer challenges of various types
5.1.1. The corporate peer challenges are making a real difference to councils,
supporting them to make the organisational changes they need to make.
“It has changed the way the council works… We
might have got there in the end but without the
challenge team there would have been a longer
period of muddle. We wouldn’t have got there as
quickly and the emphasis on change wouldn’t have
been as clear as it is now’.
Council leader
5.1.2. Peer challenges are also more efficient and better value for money than the
old top-down inspection system that the Audit Commission led.
…perhaps the most important endorsement I can give the peer challenge is
that it was nothing like CPA or CAA. We didn't feel that we were being
inspected,
rather that we had critical friends with us who wanted to put forward positive
ideas for how we could improve. We achieved as much as we have done
through previous inspections but with about ten per cent of the effort
Council chief executive
5.2. Trained and developed over 2,000 councillors
5.2.1. Our support to develop councillors is outstanding. There is no other
organisation able to provide the comprehensive support that we are able to
offer.

Page 16

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

"The Leadership Academy helped me gain a greater
understanding and develop my local political leadership
skills. The exposure to councillors from very diverse
backgrounds and authorities was priceless."
Leader, metropolitan borough council

5.2.2. Our programmes also help to develop the new leaders needed in the future.
"I had the confidence to go for the role as leader,
feeling that I could step up and do the role. I may
have had doubts without the Leadership Academy."
Leader, metropolitan borough council

5.3. Supported councils to make savings in excess of £400m.
5.3.1. In areas such as adult social care, where we are supporting 43 local
authoritiesF
"The support has helped us identify efficiency savings
in learning disability services totalling £10.3m”
Director, county council

5.3.2.

Fand through renegotiating contracts.
The LGA contracts negotiating expert with commercial
acumen helped us to renegotiate our four largest
contracts. This has enabled the council to realise an
efficiency saving of £2.3 million against an initial
target of £1 million.
District council

5.3.3. Our productivity experts have worked in 34 councils helping them deliver £52
million of efficiency savings.
5.4. Recruited and trained almost 250 talented graduates for the sector
5.4.1. Graduates bring energy, enthusiasm and intellect, demonstrating an ability to
rise to a challenge and hit the ground running. The National Graduate
Development Programme (NGDP) provides councils with national

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

management trainees who have leadership potential, the capacity to
modernise, challenge and improve services and service delivery.
“Every single graduate has been excellent and
I’m a real believer in the scheme because the
assessment process has brought us an excellent
candidate every time and we’ve been spoilt for
choice.”
Unitary council
5.5. Launched LG Inform
5.5.1. The LGA launched LG Inform, a tool providing the most comprehensive set of
comparable performance and finance data that is available to councils and the
wider public.
“Wow. I now have an easy way of comparing
what my council is doing with the rest of the
country.”
Resident of a London borough
5.6. Supported councils to grow their local economies
5.6.1. The LGA is supported 77 councils in growing their local economies through a
range of support under our Economic Growth Advisers programme. 33
councils have also been supported through our Capital and Assets
programme and a further 12 with our One Public Estate Programme.
We greatly appreciate the support the LGA continue
to provide through the Capital and Asset Pathfinder
and One Public Estate Programmes. It has given
us the opportunity to work with leading edge
councils as well giving us a voice within central
government
Director, county council
5.6.2. At the same time as the launch of sector-led improvement, the LGA
Improvement and Innovation Board agreed that there should be an
evaluation of the programme, and the formal specification was agreed by the
Board in November 2011. The next section of the report summarises the
findings of the evaluation.

Page 18

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Part 2: Evaluation
6. The evaluation is now in its final stages. Whilst several aspects are still being finalised,
we are now in a position to feed back the key findings.
7. The main aim of the evaluation was to understand whether, in the context of reduced
resources within the sector:
7.1. the approach to sector-led improvement has the confidence of the sector and the
government, and the trust of the public;
7.2. the sector has been able to strengthen local accountability;
7.3. the sector is adopting the sector-led improvement approach and continues to
improve with a reduced burden of inspection, and in the absence of top down
performance assessment; and
7.4. the tools offered to the sector have had a positive impact on the sector’s capacity to
improve itself.
8. The overall message from the evaluation is very positive. Residents remain satisfied with
and continue to trust their local council, despite the increasing financial constraints being
faced by the sector. Further, the sector-led improvement approach and offer of support
from the LGA has been welcomed by councils, and there is a high level of confidence
within the sector in its capacity to monitor its own performance and improve. The results
suggest that it would be beneficial to further inform external stakeholders about the
benefits of sector-led improvement in practice. The key messages are outlined below,
and details of the methods used are attached at Appendix A.
Stronger local accountability
9. The public polling shows that, since September 2012, councils have maintained
performance on a number of indicators such as keeping people informed,
responsiveness to residents’ concerns, trust and satisfaction, which, taken together, give
an insight into levels of local accountability across the sector:
9.1. In the January 2014 polling, 66 per cent of respondents said that their council keeps
them very or fairly well informed about the services and benefits it provides – the
same proportion who said this in September 2012.
9.2. In January 2014, 61 per cent said that their local council acts on the concerns of
local residents a fair amount or a great deal – similar to the 62 per cent who said this
in September 2012.
9.3. Local residents continue to trust councils to make decisions about how services are
provided in their local area. In January, 77 per cent said that, of their local council or
the government, they trusted their local council most to do this.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

9.4. Respondent’s satisfaction with the way their local council runs things has also
remained stable since the polling started, with a high level of satisfaction at January
2014 – 70 per cent were very or fairly satisfied (see Figure 1).
Figure 1: Proportion of residents very or fairly satisfied with the way their local
council(s) runs things?

9.5. Respondents to the survey of senior members and officers were also positive about
accountability in their authority, with 97 per cent of chief executives and 96 per cent
of leaders either agreeing or strongly agreeing with the statement “local
accountability is strong in my authority”.
9.6. Finally, the senior officials from government departments and inspectorates had
increased their confidence in the theory of sector-led improvement and local
accountability since the baseline interviews in 2012; but expressed a desire to see
more evidence of it working in practice.
Councils owning the approach to sector-led improvement
10. There are high levels of awareness of the approach to improvement and confidence in
the ability of the sector to improve, as well as evidence of improvement.
10.1. In the survey of senior members and officers, chief executives had a high level of
awareness of the approach (87 per cent had heard a lot or a moderate amount),
awareness amongst leaders was lower but still fairly high (60 per cent – with a
further 27 per cent having heard a little).
10.2. Those who were aware of the sector-led improvement approach were also very
supportive. In response to the statement: “The approach to sector-led improvement
is the right approach in the current context.” Eighty per cent of those chief
executives who were aware agreed or strongly agreed and 68 per cent of leaders
agreed or strongly agreed. The majority of remaining respondents were neutral.

Page 20

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

10.3. The sector’s level of awareness about individual offers is high. The offers that
leaders and chief executives were most commonly aware of were peer challenge
(100 per cent of chief executives and 89 per cent of leaders were aware) and
member training and development (97 per cent of chief executives and 93 per cent
of leaders).
10.4. Authorities are confident in the skills and capacity of both their own authorities and
of the sector to monitor its own performance and continuously improve. For example,
over ninety per cent of heads of policy and performance, leaders and chief
executives were confident in the skills and capacity of their own authority to a great
or moderate extent, with chairs of scrutiny also confident, at 85 per cent. Very high
levels were also confident that their authority was making advances in driving
improvement (see Figure 2).
10.5. This confidence is borne out by the data analysis of key performance metrics.
Analysis of a series of 97 metrics, across the full range of local government activity,
has been carried out to provide an objective assessment of local government
performance since 2010. An interim analysis shows a positive direction of travel,
with approximately three quarters of these metrics having seen an improvement
since 2010. More detailed reports on these indicators are currently being prepared
in LG Inform, grouped by LGA board, which will allow each board to take a more indepth view of data for their service area.
Figure 2: Proportion of senior members and officers who agree or strongly agree that
‘My authority is making advances in driving improvement’

10.6. Focusing on the approach to sector-led improvement within adult social care
specifically, through the Towards Excellence in Adult Social Care (TEASC)
programme, awareness was very high amongst directors and portfolio holders of
adult social care (99 per cent and 83 per cent respectively had heard a moderate

Page 21

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

amount or a lot). The majority who were aware of the approach agreed that it was
the right one in the current context. Seventy nine per cent of directors agreed or
strongly agreed and 71 per cent of lead members.
10.7. Within children’s services, 82 per cent of directors had heard a lot or a moderate
amount about sector-led improvement post the Children’s Improvement Board. Of
these, 60 per cent agreed it was the right approach in the current context, and a
further 29 per cent were neutral.
Helpfulness of the LGA support offer
11. There is also evidence to demonstrate that, as well as high levels of awareness of the
offer in the sector, councils have valued the support the LGA is making available and that
it has been helpful to their improvement journey.
11.1. In the survey of senior members and officers, 93 per cent of leaders who were aware
of the offer and 93 per cent of chief executives said that the support and resources
offered had had a positive impact on their authority (see Figure 3).
Figure 3: Proportion of senior members and officers who said the support and
resources offered by the LGA has had a positive impact on their authority

11.2. Ninety five per cent of chief executives who were aware of the offer and 86 per cent
of leaders thought that the support and resources offered had had a positive impact
on the sector more generally.
Corporate Peer Challenge
11.3. The more detailed evaluation of individual offers further explores their value to the
sector. For example, the evaluation of the corporate peer challenge offer, concluded
that:

Page 22

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

11.3.1. Councils have been impressed with the knowledge and experience shown by
peer challenge teams and the professional manner in which they conduct
themselves.
11.3.2. They particularly value the fact that team members understand the complexity
of working in a political environment – this helps to give councils confidence in
the process.
11.3.3. Councils reported that the feedback and reports from peers teams offer
challenging, constructive and honest insight.
11.3.4. Councils report that Corporate Peer Challenge has had a positive impact on
their capacity to take responsibility for their own improvement. It encourages
open and honest self-assessment and provides councillors, officers, staff,
partners and communities with an independent review of a council’s strengths
and weaknesses and the challenges it faces.
11.3.5. Peer challenge has had a positive impact on their capacity to take
responsibility for their own improvement.
11.3.6. It has encouraged councils to agree clear priorities and to integrate strategic
management with resource planning.
11.3.7. Peer challenge has supported councils in improving their medium term
financial planning, efficiency programmes, partnership working, performance
management, and engagement with partners and communities.
11.3.8. Councils that have experienced the process are strong advocates for it.
Sector-led improvement or central government intervention
11.4. UKRacs were commissioned to do a specific piece of independent evaluation looking
at sector-led improvement compared to central government-led intervention, for
turning around a council that is visibly failing. The researchers looked in detail at two
case studies and concluded that sector-led improvement is better than central
government intervention and that local authorities should be responsible for their
own improvement and turnaround, but that where the council requires external
support the sector should lead the improvement. Only where that proves insufficient
should central government intervene.
11.5. The evaluation also demonstrated that sector-led improvement can help councils to
turn themselves around, that it can be swifter to provide effective support, and that
the sector does not shy away from delivering tough messages.
Adults and Children’s
11.6. For adult social care services and support specifically, offered to authorities through
TEASC, 94 per cent of directors thought they have had a positive impact on their
authority’s capacity to monitor its own performance and continuously improve; whilst
82 per cent of lead members did.

Page 23

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

11.7. Awareness of the different elements of the LGA support available to help within
children’s services was generally high amongst directors, particularly for the
safeguarding peer review (92 per cent were aware) and diagnostics for
safeguarding, care and adoption (75 per cent). Of those who had heard about the
support, 93 per cent thought that there would be a positive impact on their children’s
services department.
12. There will be further evaluations of Knowledge Hub, LG Inform, Leadership Academy, LC
Leadership Programme (formerly Leeds Castle), YouChoose, support from the Centre for
Public Scrutiny and the Planning Advisory Service, as well as of sector-led improvement
in children’s services.
Part 3: Conclusion
13. The amount of direct support provided by the LGA to support local authorities with their
journeys of improvement is being maintained at a very high level. The initial findings from
the evaluation paint an extremely positive picture about the effectiveness of sector-led
improvement and the support the LGA is providing. This is a significant achievement for
the sector against the backdrop of increasing financial constraints and in the light of some
scepticism from national stakeholders. We will be thinking carefully about how we can
maximize the impact and benefit of the findings, to strengthen the arguments for stronger
local accountability and the role of sector-led improvement.
14. In particular, the findings help to demonstrate that improvement is not something that can
be done to organisations. It has to be owned by the organisations themselves. That’s
why there is always a limit to the effectiveness of inspection. The last few years have
demonstrated that the sector have enthusiastically engaged in improvement activity.
Taking their own improvement journey seriously but also giving back to the sector by
providing support for others. The support from members and officers acting as peers on
peer challenge programmes is the equivalent to millions of pounds of consultancy
support.
15. Our sector-led improvement approach, particularly our peer challenge programme, allows
people to be more open and forward looking. The programme clearly has traction and it
is far more sustainable than an approach that is inspection focussed which undoubtedly
limits creatively and innovation and over time people just play the game.

Page 24

Agenda Item 4

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Appendix A

Method for the evaluation of sector-led improvement
The key pieces of research drawn upon are:
•

a telephone survey of senior members and officers conducted over the course of
October and November 2013 (and a baseline survey of this group was conducted in
October and November 2012);

•

a series of telephone polls of representative random samples of approximately 1,000
British adults (aged 18 or over) carried out quarterly between September 2012 and
January 2014;

•

time series data analysis of key performance metrics for local government;

•

an online survey of council heads of policy and performance conducted in October
2013 (a baseline survey of this group was conducted over the course of May and June
2012);

•

a ‘perceptions audit’ comprising in-depth interviews with 15 senior officials from
organisations including regulators, inspectorates and government departments during
October and November 2013 (a baseline perceptions audit was conducted over the
course of June and July 2012); and

•

in addition, a number of small scale evaluations of the individual offers of LGA support
for sector-led improvement, including a peer challenge evaluation and a study into the
relative effectiveness of sector-led improvement and government-led interventions.

Page 25

Page 26

Agenda Item 5

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Proportionality for 2014-2015
Purpose of report
For decision.
Summary
This report sets out the proposed timetable for confirming changes to LGA proportionality,
and agreeing the allocation of seats and distribution of chairs and vice-chairs, following the
2014 local government elections on 22 May.

Recommendation
That the LGA Leadership Board agree the proposed process and timetable set out in
paragraphs 5 to 9 of the report.
Action
Officers and LGA Leadership Board to take forward the timetable as set out in the report.

Contact officer:

Claire Holloway

Position:

Head of Corporate Governance

Phone no:

0207 664 31565

E-mail:

claire.holloway@local.gov.uk

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Proportionality for 2014-2015
Background
1.

The 2014 local government elections will take place on Thursday, 22 May (alongside
elections to the European Parliament) in 161 English Councils:

1.1 All 32 London Boroughs (all-out)
1.2 All 36 Metropolitan Districts (by thirds);
1.3

67 District Councils (by thirds);

1.4

7 District Councils (by halves);

1.5

19 Unitary Authorities (by thirds).

2.

There are a total of 4,216 seats being contested in England.

3.

The London Boroughs of Hackney, Lewisham, Newham and Tower Hamlets and
Watford Borough Council will hold mayoral elections.

4.

This report summarises the process and timetable for confirming changes to LGA
proportionality for 2014-2015 and for agreeing the allocation of seats and distribution of
chairs and vice-chairs. The timetable for this, including key General Assembly dates, is
attached at Appendix A to this report.

Process and timetable
5.

The LGA’s estimated proportionality figures should be available by Friday, 23 May or
Tuesday, 27 May (taking into account the Monday bank holiday) at the latest. The
interim figures, showing the effect of the changes in proportionality on the distribution of
seats amongst the LGA’s political groups, will be e-mailed to Group Leaders and
Heads of Group Offices as soon as they are available.

6.

The definitive election results data, commissioned from the LGC Elections Centre at
the University of Plymouth, should be available on Wednesday, 28 May. The
University of Plymouth also prepare estimated LGA proportionality figures, which are
checked against the LGA’s own estimates. Any large variations will be shared with
Group Leaders and Heads of Group Offices the same day. The final, definitive,
political balance will be calculated by the LGA Analysis and Research team and will be
available on Thursday, 29 May.

7.

The Heads of Group Offices, Head of Corporate Governance and Member Services
Manager will meet on 28 May to discuss the estimated figures and again on 29 May
when the final calculations are available, to discuss:
7.1 the allocation of seats amongst the groups based on the new governance
Page 28

Agenda Item 5

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

structures, agreed by the General Assembly at its meeting on 23 January 2014.
7.2 the distribution of chair and vice-chair places.
8.

Following this meeting, the Heads of Group Offices will brief their respective leading
members. A report setting out the distribution of places and the distribution of chair
and vice-chair places will be brought to the LGA Leadership Board meeting on
Wednesday, 11 June. In the event of any difference of opinion on the implications of
the figures group offices will arrange for Group Leaders to meet and discuss.

9.

Nominations for LGA Office Holders must be made by the political groups to the Annual
Meeting of the General Assembly on 8 July in Bournemouth. The Groups will also need
to agree the distribution of chairs and vice-chairs between them and use their
respective methods to populate the seats allocated to them.
This exercise should be completed by early August to enable sufficient time for
Member Services to confirm all appointments in writing and invite new members to the
LGA Councillors’ Briefing Day on Thursday, 4 September 2014 in Local Government
House.

Financial implications
10.

There are no unbudgeted financial implications for the LGA.

Page 29

Agenda Item 5

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Appendix A

General Assembly, Political Balance and Appointments
to Member Structures 2014-2015
Wednesday 12 February

Alert to Authorities giving preliminary notice of and timetable for the
General Assembly Annual Meeting

Wednesday 19 March

Alert inviting Authorities to appoint their representatives to the
General Assembly for 2013/14 and those attending the Annual
Meeting by Thursday 29 May 2014. Also advises deadline for
receipt of motions Friday 25 April 2014

Wednesday 9 April

Proportionality report to LGA Leadership Board outlining process
and timetable.

Friday 25 April

Member authorities’ deadline for submitting motions to General
Assembly (5pm)

Thursday 22 May

Local Elections in England and Elections to the European
Parliament.

Friday 23 May/Tuesday
27 May

Estimated political balance figures from the LGA Research and
Information team (dependent on speed of councils’ declarations of
results). Email to Group Leaders and HGOs.

Wednesday, 28 May

Definitive elections data available from LG Elections Centre,
University of Plymouth.
Meeting of HGOs and Head of Corporate Governance to discuss
the estimated changed percentages and their implications for
changes to the distribution of seats amongst the parties and the
distribution of Chair and Vice-Chair places.

Thursday, 29 May

Final political balance calculation available from the LGA Research
and Information team. HGOs brief Group Leaders

Wednesday 11 June
2.00pm

Report to LGA Leadership Board with formal proposals for places
on boards and distribution of chair/vice-chair places

From 12 June to 1 August

Political Groups to use their respective methods to populate the
seats allocated to them – to take effect from Monday 1 September
2014.

Thursday, 29 May

Deadline for Authorities to inform the Association of General
Assembly representatives for 2014/15.
Page 30

Agenda Item 5

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Thursday, 19 June to
Friday, 20 June

Despatch of Agenda and papers for the Annual Meeting to General
Assembly members

Tuesday 8 July

Political Groups to report their nominations for LGA Office Holders
to General Assembly Annual Meeting

Friday 11 July

Member Services send appointment letters to the LGA Chairman,
Vice-Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen.

July to 1 August

HGOs to inform Member Services of nominations to the following
member structures:
LGA Leadership Board
LGA Executive
Boards
Fire Services Management Committee
Local Government Leadership
Local Partnerships
Employer Bodies

From 1 August

Member Services send appointment letters to all members and
invitations to Councillors’ Briefing on Thursday, 4
September 2014.

Monday 1 September

2014/2015 meeting cycle commences.

Thursday, 4 September

LGA Councillors’ Briefing (new and/or continuing members).

Page 31

Page 32

Agenda Item 6

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Annual Conference and Exhibition 2014
Purpose of report
For information and overview.

Summary
This report updates the Leadership Board on the progress made to date with arrangements
for the LGA Annual Conference, taking place in Bournemouth from 8-10 July 2014.

Recommendation
That the Leadership Board comment on and approve the emerging programme and
activities for the Annual Conference 2014.
Action
As directed by the Board.

Contact officer:

David Holdstock / Roberta Henry

Position:

Director of Communications / Deputy Head of Events

Phone no:

020 7664 3056 / 020 7664 3151

E-mail:

david.holdstock@local.gov.uk / roberta.henry@local.gov.uk

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Annual Conference and Exhibition ‘the local government event
of the year’
Background and conference programme planning
1.

The LGA annual conference and exhibition is the Association’s showpiece event
attracting over 1200 attendees from Local Government and the Local Government
family, central Government, the private and voluntary sector, plus up to another 300
exhibitors, speakers and press.

2.

Last year the LGA successfully used its annual conference to set out, through its
“Rewiring Public Services” campaign, a range of propositions that will change the
relationship for the better between central and local government, and address the
financial issues that are providing serious challenges to the sector. Since last year the
LGA has been ensuring that these propositions are heard, understood and adopted by
those writing party manifestos.

3.

This year’s annual conference comes at a pivotal time between the May local elections
and the 2015 General Election. As party manifestos are finalised the LGA will use this
conference as an opportunity to build on the “Rewiring” work and look to the priorities
of whichever government is formed in May 2015. The conference will provide an
excellent opportunity for national politicians to hear first-hand the key challenges for the
sector, and what needs to be done to address them.

4.

Further to the February Leadership Board, we have revised the end of the Thursday of
conference, to include lunches within the group meetings. Therefore, conference will
officially close at 2.30pm.

5.

Invitations have been sent to the three party leaders for main keynote sessions. Other
plenary sessions will be as follows:
5.1. Rt Hon Eric Pickles MP, Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government.
5.2. Rt Hon Iain Duncan Smith MP, Secretary of State for Work and Pensions
5.3. Conference opening session ‘Political Leadership’, a cross-party panel
discussion opened by Ben Page sharing research findings, with vox pops from
leaders in the public sector, police commanders, business and voluntary sector
representatives.
5.4. ‘How do we build the homes we need’ – Sir Michael Lyons to speak alongside
Cllr Keith House and Natalie Elphicke, joint leads, ‘Review of local authorities’
role in housing supply’.

Page 34

Agenda Item 6

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

5.5. The future of health and social care – Simon Stevens, Chief Executive, NHS
England.
5.6. Lord Adonis has been invited to speak at ‘Our new sub regions – a model for
devolution’, alongside Sir John Peace, Chair, Non-Cities Commission and Jim
O’Neill, Chair, RSA Cities Commission – with involvement from new Chairs of the
LGA City Regions and People & Places Boards.
6.

Lead members and officers have this year identified the key conference themes. The
current conference programme (with confirmed speakers only) is attached at Appendix
A. Since the last conference update in February, additional sessions have been
commissioned on the following:
Culture/tourism and local growth
Fracking
Bonds/Local Authority investments session
Councils’ emergency response
Impact of devolution
Local government offer on adult skills
Fighting fraud locally

7.

Following the success of last year’s Innovation Zone, the LGA will be running an
innovation programme across three days of the conference, in a dedicated space at the
conference centre. The Innovation Zone will provide insights, inspiration and practical
support to councils that are ready to think in fundamentally different ways and to reimagine the role of local government. Again, this will allow the opportunity for drop in
sessions, masterclasses and/or discussion opportunities for councils to share best
practice with each other.

8.

We will have a full, open programme of political group events, alongside a programme
for Chief Executives.

The audience
9.

We currently have around 450 delegates booked, which is comparable with recent,
previous years, and continue to promote the event via our networks – almost 200
bookings have been received since the last update.

10.

The conference dedicated website (www.local.gov.uk/annual-conference) is available
for all conference updates.

Exhibition and sponsorship
11.

CCLA have confirmed as gold sponsor, McDonald’s have confirmed as silver sponsor,
further to approval from February Leadership Board and The MJ are confirmed as

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

media sponsor. Other packages are being sourced and finalised.
12.

The LGA will have a main exhibition stand in the centre of the Purbeck Hall – used as a
hub for any launches and for highlighting our services, member benefits, key messages
etc. This will be staffed by senior staff but will also have a strong communications
team presence, and is an excellent opportunity for networking with members and
showcasing member benefits.

13.

The political groups will be co-located in this area in the centre of the Purbeck Hall
alongside additional seating space to allow for networking and debate.

14.

Work is on-going to achieve targets for exhibition and sponsorship which is again
proving challenging. Exhibitors booked to date are:
Alzheimer's Society
APSE
Blue Sky Peterborough Ltd
Bournemouth Borough Council
British Sprinkler Alliance
Campaign for Fairer Gambling
Charities Aid Foundation
Community Development Foundation
Concessionary Solutions
DANFO UK Ltd
DUOL (Domes)
Healthmatic Limited
INLOGOV
LGBCE
Local Government Chronicle
Mordern Mindset
National Audit Office

Newton Europe Ltd
NLGN
Norse Group
Partnership
Patrol
Pinnacle PSG
PIRC Limited
Public Helath England
Rennicks uk
RNIB
Solace
The Guide Dogs for the Blind
The MJ
The Woodland Trust
Turn to us
UNISON
Volunteer Squared Ltd

Summary
15.

The conference provides an excellent platform for the Association to engage with a
large portion of our membership. It supports the Association’s lobbying and influencing
agenda through political group meetings and key speeches. It showcases local
authority best practice to the wider sector through workshops, fringes, exhibition and
case studies. It offers opportunities to profile the Association’s new products, research
and publications. It allows us to profile the policy work undertaken by the Association,
promote local government reputation and the wide ranging benefits of membership.
The event is a high profile opportunity for the lead members and senior staff to engage
with the membership and partners.

Page 36

Agenda Item 6

Conference programme as at 27 March 2014
Tuesday 8 July
8.30-10.00
10.00-11.30

APPENDIX A

Registration and refreshments
Political group and officer meetings
Conservative Group Meeting
Labour Group Meeting
Liberal Democrat Group Meeting

Main entrance

Windsor Hall
Solent Hall
Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 1

Independent Group Meeting
Chief Executives Meeting

Bayview Suite
Purbeck Lounge

11.45-12.15

General Assembly

Windsor Hall

12.15-2.00

Lunch and exhibition viewing

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

2.00-2.30

Keynote opening speech by the Chairman of the Association

Windsor Hall

2.30-3.20

Conference plenary - Political leadership - what matters?
Using the Question Time format, Ben Page from Ipsos Mori will
share research findings into Political leadership. This will then be
discussed by our panellists of council leaders who will reflect on
their own experiences of political leadership.

Windsor Hall

We will also hear views captured on video from other leaders in the
public sector, police commanders, business and voluntary sector
representatives – as to what they think political leadership is and
how this impacts on joint working in a place.
Speakers:
Ben Page, Managing Director, Ipsos MORI
Panellists:
Cllr Steve Houghton, Leader, Barnsley MBC Council
Cllr Izzi Seccombe, Leader, Warwickshire County Council
Mayor Dorothy Thornhill, Watford Borough Council
Speaker to be confirmed
3.20-4.00

Refreshments and exhibition viewing

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

4.00-4.45

Conference plenary – how do we build the homes we need?
House building remains stubbornly low and housing completions
are a fraction of their peak in the post war house building boom.
Getting a foot on the housing ladder is harder than ever, rents are
increasing and the waiting list is at almost 2 million households.
How do we build the homes we need?

Windsor Hall

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

Housing is centre stage politically and delivering housing at the
right price in the right location is an issue currently being
considered by two authoritative reviews commissioned by the
government and opposition. This session is an opportunity to hear
from the review teams and discuss the opportunities for councils to
play their full role in delivery.
Speakers:
Sir Michael Lyons, Chair of the Lyons Review
Other speakers to be confirmed
4.45-5.45

Breakout sessions
W1) Lessons from the Dutch government
Dutch local government is being transformed with a major
programme of devolution from central government including the
transfer of youth care and employment/skills development. At the
same time, there is an expectation that 30% will be saved from
budgets due to local delivery. What are the lessons for England?

Bayview Suite 1

Dutch local government has achieved much of the devolution that
we are calling for, but the difficult relationship with central
government remains. There are lessons from the Netherlands
about the new dilemmas that devolved powers bring.
Speakers:
Jantine Kriens, Chief Executive, Association of Dutch
Municipalities/VNG
W2) The high street is dead. Long live the high street
British shopping habits have fundamentally changed and, with
them, the high street. Is it time to give up on the quest to recover
the halcyon days of “the butcher, the baker and the candlestickmaker”? In many places across the country, the English high street
is finding new life as a place where people go to work, live and
play. What lessons can these places offer struggling high streets?

Purbeck Lounge

Speakers:
Mark Cullinan, Chief Executive, Lancaster City Council
Martin Blackwell, Chief Executive, Association of Town & City
Managers
Other speaker to be confirmed
W3) Local Government offer on adult skills
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Tregonwell
Seminar Suite 1

W4) The Future of Local Government Finance (“Meet the
Commission”)

Solent Hall

The LGA with CIPFA is setting up a local government finance
commission to investigate how the LG finance system needs to
change to deliver better outcomes for people.

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

This session will be an opportunity to hear about the work of the
Commission and to express views to the Commissioners.
Speakers to be confirmed.
W5) Handling emergency situations
This session will look at the local government response to an
increasing number of civil emergency situations and point to
examples of good practice in the recent flooding. It will cover the
basic principles of good preparedness and the importance of crisis
communications.

Tregonwell
Seminar Suite 2

Andy Huddart, Deloitte’s
Other speakers to be confirmed
W6) Culture tourism and local growth
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Bayview Suite 2

5.45-6.30

Civic drinks reception, hosted by Bournemouth Borough Council

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

6.30-

Fringe meetings
Complaints – an opportunity or threat? (Local Government
Ombudsman)
The LGO will present their 1st annual review of local government
complaints. It will highlight the trends and themes in the complaint
numbers and draw upon people’s real experiences of local public
services. It will also identify opportunities to use complaints as a
tool for learning and sector led improvement. The session will
encourage debate on whether complaints can be used more
effectively to support local democratic accountability and scrutiny.

Various
Bayview Suite 1

Speaker:
Michael King, Executive Director, External Affairs, LGO
Strengthening local accountability: a pre-requisite for greater
local devolution of financial powers (CfPS)

Bayview Suite 2

Rewiring Public Services’ sets out local government’s ambition for
place-based finance. In return for more local devolution,
government and national politicians will want assurance that local
areas have robust local accountability and scrutiny arrangements to
enable them to ‘track the taxpayer’s pound’. This session will
explore the barriers and opportunities and suggest a new approach
to joined-up governance: a powerful local Public Accounts
Committee for every place.
6.30-

Public Affairs Network fringe meeting

Avon Room

6.30-

Oxygen finance

Purbeck Lounge

7.30-

Independent Group Dinner

De Vere Suite,
Royal Bath Hotel

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

Wednesday 9 July
8.00-9.00

Early bird sessions
Dementia friendly communities – sharing the learning from
Yorkshire (JRF)
Join for us breakfast and hear how JRF have been working towards
a dementia-friendly Yorkshire.

Various
Bayview 1

This fringe session will discuss the progress and the learning, with
illustrations from many sectors e.g. retail; service industry; public
services; leisure; culture; transport etc.
It will draw on evidence from JRF funded projects in York and
Bradford which are currently being evaluated and will draw out
learning of involving people with dementia themselves in dementia
friendly communities.
You will also hear how JRF are committed to becoming a dementia
friendly organisation.
Philly Hare, Programme Manager at JRF will lead the session
and will discuss her involvement in the regional Dementia Action
Alliance, the 20 dementia friendly case studies in Yorkshire and her
role as a Champion on the Prime Minister’s dementia friendly
communities group.
8.00-9.00

Licensing fringe meeting
Details to be confirmed

Bayview 2

9.15-9.45

Conference plenary - Political spokesperson
Speakers to be confirmed

Windsor Hall

9.45-10.30

Parallel plenary sessions
PP1) Devolution

Solent Hall

Details and speakers to be confirmed
PP2) Care Bill
By the time of Annual Conference the Care Bill will have finished its
passage through Parliament and become an Act. This will be a
significant point on the journey to a reformed care and support
system and attention will need to shift firmly to preparing for
implementation. The reforms must also be seen as part of the
wider transformation of health and social care, including integration
and the Better Care Fund.
With such a full and complex agenda facing social care this session
will be an important opportunity to hear from experts from across
the care sector on the main implications of the Care Act, key
implementation challenges and how they might be overcome, and
how the reforms need to fit with the wider integration agenda.

Page 40

Purbeck Lounge

Agenda Item 6

David Pearson, President, Association of Directors of Adult Social
Services, and Corporate Director Adult Social Care, Health and
Public Protection, Nottinghamshire County Council
Richard Hawkes, Chief Executive, Scope, and Chair, Care and
Support Alliance
Other speakers to be confirmed
PP3) Bonds/Investment (CCLA)
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Windsor Hall

10.30-11.15

Refreshments

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

11.15-12.15

Breakout sessions
W1) Climate Local: delivering growth, income and safer
communities
Councils across the country are taking positive steps to deliver
local economic growth, make savings, generate income and
increase the resilience of local communities and businesses.
Against these outcomes, and in the face of mounting funding cuts
and a winter of unprecedented severe weather, councils continue
to lead work in reducing carbon emissions and making their places,
services and local economies more resilient to our changing
climate.

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 1

Climate Local is an LGA initiative to drive, inspire and support
council action on climate change. Over 80 authorities have signed
up to the initiative since it was launched in June 2012, committing
themselves to take action based on local priorities, such as
supporting jobs, attracting Green Deal and ECO funding to protect
vulnerable residents from rising energy prices and safeguarding
communities from the impacts of flooding and heatwaves. This
session will be a chance to hear from leading councils about the
work they are delivering and the positive impact it is having on the
local area.
Speakers:
Cllr David Brazier, Climate Local Kent and the Kent Environment
Strategy
Cllr Robert Light, Deputy Chair, Environment Agency
Cllr Rakhia Ismail, London Borough of Islington
W2) The path to true workforce integration
As health and social care services in particular move ever closer
together, partnership working and organizational integration are
giving way to the challenge of developing true single workforces
focused on communities; this brings significant challenges around
culture change and resilience as well as hard issues around pay,
conditions, skills and management.

Page 41

Purbeck Lounge

Agenda Item 6

Delegates will hear from a range of councils about the approaches
they have adopted with partners as well as from key national
players such as DH and Skills for Care. Just what do partners
really need to do to develop a single workforce rather than just
combined teams? What are the benefits and pitfalls?
Speakers:
Cllr Elaine Atkinson, Poole Borough Council
Sharon Allen, Chief Executive, Skills for Care
W3) What next for welfare reform?
This session will focus on behaviour change in relation to welfare
reform from the perspective of Government, local government, and
a behavioural change specialist.

Solent Hall

A Government representative will outline the behaviour change the
Government is aiming to achieve through its welfare reforms with
reference to making work pay, the ‘Claimant Commitment’, and the
introduction of Universal Credit.
A local authority representative will suggest how councils can work
with partners to help create the right environment locally to support
behaviour change and welfare reform. Particular reference will be
made to improving people’s financial resilience, home life stability,
and employment prospects.
Lastly a social researcher will take a forward look at the welfare
reform agenda and suggest, with reference to the desired
outcomes, how behavioural change programmes need to be very
carefully designed to achieve their aims and avoid possible pitfalls.
There will then be an opportunity to put questions to the panel.
W4) LEPs – friend or foe?

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 2

Debate about squaring democratic accountability of public funds
with business-led drive for growth
As increasing amounts of public funding on enablers of growth,
such as housing and transport, are handed over to LEPs, how is
local government supposed to fulfil its statutory responsibilities
regarding those policy areas when decision-making has been
delegated to business partners?
Speakers:
Alex Pratt, Bucks TV LEP
Mayor Tony Egginton, Mansfield
Cllr Paul Carter, Leader, Kent County Council
W5) Councils innovating to generate income
A large number of councils are now thinking through a more
commercial approach to their activities – and being councils, that
also means ensuring better outcomes for their citizens.

Page 42

Bayview 1

Agenda Item 6

Rather than increasing fees and parking charges many councils are
using their assets, trading services with others across the public
and private sector, and selling commodities to generate income.
This session will provide an opportunity to hear more about
innovative examples of council income generation.
Speakers to be confirmed
W6) Fracking
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Bayview 2

12.15-2.00

Lunch and exhibition viewing

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

12.45-1.45

Chief Executives Meeting

Purbeck Lounge

12.45-1.45

Bournemouth fringe meeting

Tregonwell
seminar suite 1

2.00-2.50

Parallel plenary sessions
PP1) Fair deal for England and wales
This session will look at the future of the Barnett Formula and
funding arrangements across the United Kingdom
With the Scottish referendum due to take place on 18 September
2014, this session is a timely opportunity for delegates to explore
what England and Wales gain from a new constitutional settlement.
It will develop the recommendation made in Rewiring Public
Services that the Barnett Formula be scrapped and make the case
for a fair deal across the Union.

Solent Hall

Speakers to be confirmed
PP2) A vision for children and young people in the 21st century
At the last LGA Conference we launched our ‘rewiring campaign’ to
provide solutions to how we can deliver public services despite the
pressures on public spending. The key principle underpinning our
proposals for children was that services need to be built and
integrated around the needs of children and their families, not
around buildings, institutions and wasteful bureaucracy.

Purbeck Lounge

Since then we have consulted widely with children and young
people and with partners in the public and voluntary sectors to set
out a clear set of shared ambitions for children that we would seek
to deliver in the context of ‘rewired’ public services.
Speakers to be confirmed
2.00-2.50

PP3) Clash of the think tanks
A panel of high profile think tanks, brought together to debate the
cost of living, a subject which is emerging as a key theme in the run
up to the 2015 general election.

Page 43

Windsor Hall

Agenda Item 6

Speakers:
Ruth Porter, Head of Economic & Social Policy, Policy Exchange
Ed Cox, Director, IPPR North
Stephen Lee, Chief Executive, CentreForum
2.00-2.50

PP4) Using your workforce to transform your council
It’s a time of dynamic and turbulent change for the local
government sector, when members are redefining and transforming
their councils in a new era of public service. The future will see us
working in an environment full of complex systems and problems
that will require human flexibility, joint working and responsiveness.
This means our roles, responsibilities and structures will need to be
adaptable and flexible and our staff will need to feel confident and
resilient about developing and implementing change. This session
will provide evidence of how using culture, engagement and skilled
and empowered management can support your workforce to drive
high performance and transformational change.
Speakers to be confirmed

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 1

3.00-3.45

Conference plenary –
Simon Stevens, Chief Executive, NHS England

Windsor Hall

3.45-4.45

Refreshments and exhibition viewing

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

4.45-5.15

Conference plenary – Political spokesperson
Rt Hon Eric Pickles MP, Secretary of State for Communities and
Local Government

Windsor Hall

5.15-6.00

Fringe meetings
F1) Social impact bonds
This joint LGA and Social Finance event would introduce attendees
to the concept and principles of the social investment market,
specifically social impact bonds, and how they can be used in a
local authority setting.

6.00-7.00

Purbeck Lounge

F2) Early intervention foundation
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 1

F3) Womens Local Government Society
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 2

F4) Fighting fraud locally
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Bayview 1

F5) Individual Electoral Registration
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Meyrick Suite

All delegate drinks reception
Sponsored by McDonald’s

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls

Page 44

Agenda Item 6

7.30-

Conservative Group dinner

Solent Hall

Labour Group dinner

De Vere Suite,
Royal Bath
Dorset Room,
Norfolk Royale

Liberal Democrat Group dinner
7.15-

SOLACE/LGA drinks reception followed by

Print Room

Chief Executives dinner
Thursday 10 July
8.00-9.00

Early bird sessions
Let’s talk about loneliness (JRF)
What are the risks of not addressing loneliness, of not doing
whatever we can to reduce loneliness? How do we make every
contact count? How do we look after the health and wellbeing of
our communities, colleagues and ourselves? How do we resource
prevention in hard times? How can we all talk about loneliness?

Various
Bayview 1

Join us for breakfast and share research findings and solutions
from the three year JRF Neighbourhood approaches to loneliness
programme. Attendees will have the opportunity to hear about how
local unpaid community members/researchers directly engaged
with over two thousand residents, using Action Research and Asset
Based Community Development approaches. This resulted in
sustainable prevention in all neighbourhoods; lead by and for local
people.
There are people like this everywhere and the process used so
effectively, but adaptably across the four neighbourhoods is
replicable - low cost and sustainable.
Speakers:
Tracey Robbins, Programme Manager Neighbourhood
approaches to loneliness, Joseph Rowntree Foundation
Susan Allen, Former support worker for the JRF Neighbourhood
approaches to loneliness programme
Electoral reviews: a masterclass (Local Government Boundary
Commission for England)
Every year, the Commission carries out electoral reviews of local
authorities across England. This special session gives members
and officers an opportunity to hear from the experts how their
council could benefit from a review and how they can get the right
result for their council.
Speakers to be confirmed.

Page 45

Branksome Suite

Agenda Item 6

Rewiring blue light services
This session will provide an opportunity for Members to
discuss/debate the benefits and challenges of greater collaboration
across the emergency services. It will also be an opportunity to
explore examples of greater collaboration that have already taken
place. The session will draw on the post-Knight debate taking place
in the fire sector as well as the contributions to the debate from
Ellwood and others. A key element of the discussion will be the role
that Community Budgets can play in this area in improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of the emergency services.

Meyrick Suite

The session will be a panel session chaired by Cllr Kay Hammond,
Chairman of the Fire Services Management Committee and Fire
Commission. Three speakers will give short introductory
presentations before the session is opened up for questions and
debate.
Speakers to be confirmed
4) Driving transformational change
The shared Chief Executives network will showcase the leading
edge transformational change they are driving in their authorities,
building on their earlier work to achieve shared management and
services. The session will consider where you look next for savings
and improved outcomes once you have shared everything possible
in your initial partnerships – including integration across tiers of
government, new ways of commissioning services and scaling up
sharing across further boundaries.

Bayview 2

Speakers to be confirmed
9.00-10.00

Breakout sessions
W1) Councils and the motorist – do we have a future together?
The government is predicting that traffic on our roads will increase
by over nearly half as much again by 2040. Road maintenance
funding is already a half a billion pounds short of what is required
every year. Where will these cars park? how will business
deliveries be made? Are we grinding to a halt?Councils must have
the powers to deal with transport as a whole in order to make the
road system fit for purpose and to facilitate the traffic that is tied to
roads by managing it properly and by diverting other journeys to
other modes.
Speakers:
Cllr Jason Kitcat, Leader, Brighton and Hove
Other speakers to be confirmed

Page 46

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 2

Agenda Item 6

W2) Hidden Talents, helping every young person to learn or
earn
Councils are ambitious for their young people and have proven
best able to help their youngsters stay in learning or find a job, but
budget reductions and the increasing centralisation of schemes to
help young people has hampered the local effort. This session will
provide opportunity to discuss what councils are doing to help
young people, the future role for councils in supporting youngsters
to drive and benefit from local growth, and how wider reform and
devolution of services can enable councils to better help future
generations.

Purbeck Lounge

Speakers to be confirmed
W3) Broadband rollout
Details and speakers to be confirmed

Tregonwell Hall
Seminar Suite 1

W4) How do we make health everybody's business?
The conditions in which people are born, grow, live, work and age
impact on the health of the nation. The hard truth is that unless
everyone makes health their business as a nation we will not be
able to afford to treat an increasingly frail, older and sick
population.

Solent Hall

Preventing illness and empowering people to stay well is not
something health and care professionals can do alone; broader
action from across all sections of the community is required. To
ensure people receive the right support at the right time, we must
continue to align services and ensure our finite resources are
targeted in the most effective way.
Delegates will hear how we develop a culture in which health is at
the core of integrated planning and services, in which all parts of
the community understand how they can contribute to better health
outcomes. It’s easy to say that health is everybody’s business, but
how do you go about doing something about it? The aim of this
session is to examine how the work of health, police, fire and
community groups can have a positive impact on people's health
and wellbeing and how the redesign of public services and a
shared ambition to improve the health of our communities can help.
W5) The National Procurement Strategy for Local Government:
Your role in its success
Councils are using procurement to make savings, increase
productivity and deliver local economic growth for their
communities businesses.
LGA has convened a National Advisory Group for LG Procurement.
This session will be a chance to hear from innovative councils
about the work they are delivering, savings being made and the
positive impact it is having on the local area.

Page 47

Bayview 1

Agenda Item 6

Speakers:
Martin Reeves, Coventry City Council and Chief Executive
sponsor of the National Advisory Group for Local Government
Procurement
W6) Garden Cities – the what and the why
Town and Country Planning Association to lead a talk about the
principles behind Garden Cities and why they could be an
appropriate solution to some of the country’s current housing
issues. New settlements provide the opportunity and the
economies of scale to fulfil the ambitions of sustainable
development by delivering multiple benefits including social
housing, zero carbon design, sustainable transport. New
communities also offer a powerful prospect to put in place new
governance structures that put people at the heart of developing
new communities and owning community assets.

Bayview 2

Speakers:
Hugh Ellis, Chief Executive, Town and Country Planning
Association
Speakers to be confirmed
10.00-10.45

Refreshments

10.45-11.15

Conference plenary – political spokesperson
Rt Hon Iain Duncan Smith MP, Secretary of State for Work and
Pensions

11.15-11.45

Conference plenary – political spokesperson
Speaker to be confirmed

Windsor Hall

11.45-12.30

Conference plenary - Our new sub regions - a model for
devolution
An address by the policy driver on this issue in the Labour Party

Windsor Hall

Purbeck and
Tregonwell Halls
Windsor Hall

Lord Adonis has set a challenge that future government would be
willing to devolve growth and finance freedoms, but it needs subregional governance. He has asked for contributions to this
debate.

1.00-2.30

Conference plenary – Political Spokesperson
Senior Cabinet Spokesperson confirmed
Lunch and political group and officer meetings

2.30

Conservative Group
Labour Group
Liberal Democrat Group
Independent Group
Chief Executives meetings
Close of conference

12.30-1.00

Page 48

Windsor Hall
Various incl
Bourne Lounge
Windsor Hall
Solent Hall
Meyrick Suite
Bayview Room 1
Various

Agenda Item 7

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

General Assembly 8 July 2014 – Outline Programme
Purpose of report
For endorsement.
Summary
This year’s General Assembly will take place on Tuesday, 8 July 2014 in Bournemouth. This
report sets out for the LGA Leadership Board’s endorsement the proposed format and a draft
agenda for the meeting.

Recommendation
That the LGA Leadership Board consider and endorse the proposed format and agenda for
this year’s General Assembly.
Action
Offices to take forward as set out in the report.

Contact Officer: Claire Holloway
Position:

Head of Corporate Governance

Phone No:

020 7664 3156

Email:

claire.holloway@local.gov.uk

Page 49

Agenda Item 7

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

General Assembly – 8 July 2014 – Outline Programme
Background
1.

The Annual Meeting of General Assembly will be held on Tuesday, 8 July 2014 in
Bournemouth International Centre, immediately prior to the official opening of the LGA
Annual Conference & Exhibition.

2.

It is proposed for 2014 that we follow a similar format to 2013. The meeting
will commence with the formal business of the General Assembly, required by
the LGA Constitution, including elections to the formal positions of office. In order to
encourage discussion with, and the involvement of our membership, it is proposed that
a small number of motions be chosen by the LGA Executive to debate at this year’s
General Assembly.

3.

The proposed agenda is attached at Appendix A.

Debates on Motions submitted by member authorities
4.

In 2013, two motions were submitted to the Chief Executive in line with LGA Standing
Orders. The LGA Executive agreed to hear and debate both motions (on Welfare
Reform and Independent Local Government).

5.

All member authorities have been invited to submit motions to this year’s General
Assembly to the Chief Executive by Friday 25 April 2014. A list of motions received will
be presented to the LGA Executive on Thursday, 12 June to decide which will be
debated in full at the General Assembly.

Voting at General Assembly
6.

Voting slips will be included on the back of the agenda for the General Assembly
meeting. In accordance with the LGA Constitution, in the event of a vote, the Chairman
will call for a show of hands. Should not less that one third of local authorities present
at the meeting demand a ballot, voting members will detach and complete their voting
card and hand to the Hall Staff. The actual votes cast will be determined
retrospectively and all member authorities will be notified of the result of the ballot as
soon as possible.

.Financial Implications
7.

There are no unbudgeted financial implications for the LGA in this report.

Page 50

Agenda Item 7

Annual Meeting of the General Assembly
8 July 2014
DRAFT Agenda

APPENDIX A

TIME

ITEM

11.45

Welcome by the Chief Executive of the LGA
Elections and business

1.151.30

1.

Election of President

2.

Election of Chairman

3.

Election of Vice-Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen

4.

Councillor Sir Merrick Cockell’s Address

5.

Appointment of Vice-Presidents

6.

LGA Consolidated Financial Statements for year ending 31 March 2014

7.

Minutes of the General Assembly held on 2 July 2013

8.

Annual Report of the LGA’s Audit Committee

9.

General Assembly Debates
Close of General Assembly
The Chairman will close the meeting.
LUNCH AND EXHIBITION VIEWING

2.00

OPENING OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Date of next meeting:

Tuesday, 30 June 2015, Harrogate

Page 51

Page 52

Agenda Item 8

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Chief Executive’s Monthly Report – April 2014
Purpose of report
For discussion and direction.

Summary
The LGA business plan 2013/14 centres on three priorities:
•
•
•

Funding for local government;
Economic growth, jobs and prosperity; and
Public service reform.

The monthly Chief Executive’s report sets out the LGA’s main achievements against those
priorities. It also summarises how we are supporting councils through our core improvement
services, and how we are managing our own efficiency and effectiveness.

Recommendation
That Leadership Board notes the Chief Executive’s report for April 2014.

Contact officer:

Carolyn Downs

Position:

Chief Executive

Phone no:

020 7664 3213

E-mail:

carolyn.downs@local.gov.uk

Page 53

Agenda Item 8

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Chief Executive’s Monthly Report – April 2014
Part 1- Achievements against our three priorities
Priority 1 – Funding for local government
•

Circulated the ‘On the Day’ briefing on the Chancellor’s Budget, having briefed all MPs and
Peers on our submission to HM Treasury ahead of the Budget announcement. The briefing
has been downloaded 1,190 times since its release.

•

The Council of Europe’s first report on local government for 15 years found deep austerity
cuts are crippling councils and severely restricting their ability to provide “essential public
services”. Sir Merrick Cockell’s response to the report ran in the Guardian and Mail.

•

Briefed the Chairman ahead of his oral evidence to the Communities and Local Government
Select Committee inquiry into fiscal devolution.

•

Cllr Peter Fleming, Chairman of the Improvement and Innovation Board, wrote a column for
First magazine exploring the different methods of income generation councils are using. We
held a successful event on the same topic showcasing councils’ work in this area.

•

Cllr Sharon Taylor, Chair of the Finance Panel, responded to the Public Accounts Committee
report, which called for the Government to give local authorities the full amount of funding
needed to provide adequate council tax support for vulnerable residents. Our response ran
on ITV Online and BBC Online.

•

Our warnings that government cuts could leave elderly and disabled people without vital bus
services ran on Sky News, BBC News, LBC, BBC Radio 5 Live, BBC Radio 2 and Talk Sport.
Cllr Peter Fleming was interviewed on BBC Breakfast and Radio 4’s Today programme and
Cllr David Simmonds, Chair of the Children and Young People Board on Sky News.

•

Cllr Ann Lucas, Chair of the Safer and Stronger Communities Board was interviewed by BBC
Radio 5 Live Investigates following a report from Women’s Aid which found support for children
exposed to domestic violence has been closed in many areas due to funding cuts.

•

Our warning that fire services may struggle to deal with future emergencies as they are
receiving a third less in funding than three years ago and face a further 10 per cent cut next
year ran across broadcast and BBC News, quoting Cllr Kay Hammond, Chair of the LGA's Fire
Service Management Committee.

•

Tom Blenkinsop MP (Lab, Middlesbrough South and East Cleveland) highlighted the LGA’s
concerns about the unintended consequences of council tax referendums in a debate on
local authority funding.

•

Briefed all MPs ahead of a House of Commons debate on NHS funding and an ageing
population; Lord Harris of Haringey (Lab) on local authorities funding for local Healthwatch and
Baroness Eaton on community budgets.

•

Our response to the announcement of an extra £140 million for councils to repair roads
damaged by bad weather and a further £200 million to fill in potholes received widespread
national coverage.

Page 54

Agenda Item 8

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Priority 2 – Economic growth, jobs and prosperity
•

Cabinet Office announced the extension of the joint LGA/Cabinet Office One Public Estate
Programme, enabling a further 15 councils to join the current 12 pilots. These use central and
local government land and property to support local growth, raise capital, reduce running costs
and assist integrated service delivery.

•

A joint LGA/South West Councils workshop Making your LEP work explored sub-regional
partnerships with discussions ranging from local growth challenges to the respective roles and
relationships between councils, and LEPs.

•

LGA members continued to put pressure on Ministers and their officials to act on their
commitment to devolve spending decisions of the £5.3 billion European Structural and
Investment Fund (ESIF) for 2014-2020. Following successive interventions, the latest UK
Partnership now explicitly addresses the strategic role of the role of LEPs and their local
partners - significant progress from earlier proposals.

•

Following a meeting of the National Employers, we announced a pay offer of a one per cent
pay increase from April, with a slightly higher increase for those earning less than £14,880. The
BBC News Channel, BBC Radio 4, BBC 6 O’clock News, BBC Online, ITV News, Daily Star and
Mirror covered the announcement.

•

Our response to the Government’s proposals to limit councillors' access to the Local
Government Pension Scheme, ran on BBC Online and BBC Radio 2. Further actions are
being led by the four Group Offices.

•

LGA analysis showed the talents of 2.5 million young adults are being wasted because they
are unemployed, in part-time jobs or in jobs for which they are over-qualified. The findings were
reported in the i newspaper Independent, Express and the Times.

•

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Bill received Royal Assent in mid-March,
providing new tools for councils to tackle anti-social behaviour. Following LGA lobbying these
include powers to tackle anti-social tenants in private rented accommodation, provisions to deal
with dangerous dogs on private property, and powers for councils to deal with littering from cars.

•

Briefed all MPs on the Deregulation Bill Committee on the LGA’s New Clauses on housing
and licensing, tabled Chris Williamson MP (Lab, Derby North) and supported Councillor Ed
Turner (Environment and Housing Board) as he gave oral evidence Committee.

•

Our concern at the proposed establishment of an unelected urban development corporation to
drive the development at Ebbsfleet announced in the budget ran on ITV News Online, the
Metro, Mail Online and BBC Online.

•

Briefed Councillor Heather Kidd (Deputy Chair, Economy and Transport Board) ahead of her
oral evidence to the Transport Select Committee on local transport expenditure decisionmaking.

Priority 3 – Public services reform
•

Almost 200 councillors and parliamentarians attended our Annual Parliamentary reception in
the House of Commons, with the Chairman speaking alongside Rt Hon Eric Pickles MP
(Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government) Steve Reed OBE MP (Lab,
Croydon North) and Baroness Bakewell (Lib Dem).

Page 55

Agenda Item 8

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

•

Ran 10 free events on topics such as social impact bonds, rewiring public services and
licencing fees, and two successful residentials – Fire Conference and the Culture, Tourism and
Sport conference, which attracted 40 per cent more delegates than in 2013

•

Briefed MPs and vice-presidents ahead of debates on the school places shortfall on the
LGA’s five point plan to ensure councils have the funding and power to create places.

•

Issued a joint letter to the Telegraph with ADASS, CSA and Solace, warning that by a £135
million gap in funding for the overhaul of the system could put care for elderly and disabled
people at risk, and responded to an Age UK report alleging that 168,000 older people have
stopped receiving help with essential tasks such as eating, washing and getting dressed.

•

Submitted a written response to the Health Select Committee inquiry into ‘children’s and
adolescent mental health and CAMHS’, investigating the extent to which children and
adolescents are affected by mental health problems and access to appropriate treatment.

•

Produced a range of guides, videos and online tools in support of the new Local Government
Pension Scheme. We are also monitoring the position on councillors’ access to the LGPS
following the announcement that members will cease to have access after their current term of
office ends, and the Early Day Motion set down last week.

Part 2 - Sector-led support, improvement and innovation – our core services
•

Received confirmation that the LGA has been appointed to create a new independent company
to act as a transitional body when the Audit Commission closes in March 2015, including
managing the £85 million audit contracts, Value for Money profiles and working with the
Department for Work and Pensions on the continued delivery of the Housing Benefit Count.

•

Cllr Katie Hall chaired a end-of-year event sharing learning and celebrating the work of the very
well received Health and Wellbeing Systems Improvement Programme, which has included
17 peer challenges, 3 peer training sessions, 8 bulletins and 4 national events.

•

The annual LGA Fire Conference was held at the Millennium Stadium in Cardiff on 11 and 12
March and attracted around 320 delegates drawn from all of the fire and rescue services in
England and Wales. In an opening speech Cllr Hammond praised the sector its work in the
recent floods, before setting out the financial challenges and flagging the need for greater
collaboration and innovation across the blue light services.

•

Produced the latest sector-led improvement case study on Harlow Council, who are using the
LGA’s benchmarking data service, LG Inform, to collate and present information more
efficiently.

•

Thanks to the fantastic support from councils, the last two years of the National Graduate
Development Programme have been the most successful yet. Graduate applications for 2014
exceeded 2000, with shortlisted candidates currently taking part in the second phase of the
assessment centres.

•

There were 79,067 unique visits to the LGA website 59 per cent of which were new visitors.
Visitors spend on average two and a half minutes on the website and read more than three
pages. The flooding resource has been a main focus in this period and continues to be updated
with emphasis on recovery work.

Page 56

Agenda Item 8

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Part 3 – Our own efficiency and effectiveness
Membership
1.

We start the new membership year with three councils – London Borough of Bromley,
Slough Borough Council and Sheffield City Council - out of membership and fourteen
on notice to leave from 31 March 2015. This compares with 21 Councils on notice on
1 April 2013. In the light of the creation of the new combined authorities, the
Integrated Transport Authority associate membership scheme has been withdrawn
from 1 April.

2.

The fourteen councils on notice, who do not therefore qualify for the LGA’s 2.5%
loyalty bonus, are:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

3.

Lancashire County Council
Waverley Borough Council
Preston City Council
West Sussex County Council
Wandsworth Council
Rochford District Council
Rossendale Borough Council
Nottingham City Council
Croydon Council
East Staffordshire Borough Council
Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council
North Lincolnshire Council
Bristol City Council
Harrow Council

The following visits to councils by the Chairman, Chief Executive and Strategic
Directors are confirmed in the upcoming months.

2014 Schedule of Visits
3-4 April
4 April
14 April

Cumbria & South Lakeland
Lancashire
Cheshire West and Chester

Carolyn Downs
Carolyn Downs
Michael Coughlin

15 April
25 April

Lambeth Council (LGA MEETING)
CELC - Chief Executives' London Committee

Carolyn Downs
Carolyn Downs

28 April

Derbyshire CC

Michael Coughlin

29 April

Southend BC

Carolyn Downs

30 April

Sevenoaks RPS presentations

Sir Merrick Cockell

1-2 May

ACCE (Association of County Chief Executives)

Carolyn Downs

6 June

Liverpool City Region Chief Executive’s

Carolyn Downs

19 June

South West Chief Execs Meeting
NW Chief Executive meeting

Carolyn Downs
Carolyn Downs

24 June

Page 57

Page 58

Agenda Item 9

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Forward Plan
Purpose of report
For discussion and direction.
Summary
The LGA Leadership Board is responsible for driving the Association’s activities and
business, taking a lead in developing and overseeing delivery of the business plan and
identifying the emerging and key issues to highlight to the LGA Executive.
As part of this, Members are invited to consider which items they would like to see on future
agendas of the LGA Leadership Board, LGA Executive and Councillors’ Forum.
The current draft agendas for May, June and July 2014 are attached at Appendix A.

Recommendation
That the Leadership Board endorse the Forward Plan and specifies topics and items for
future meetings of the LGA Executive, Leadership Board and Councillors’ Forum.
Action
Officers to brief Members and officers in line with steer.

Contact officer:

Cathy Boyle

Position:

Manager, Member Services

Phone no:

020 7664 3205

E-mail:

cathy.boyle@local.gov.uk

Page 59

Agenda Item 9

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

Appendix A

May 2014
LGA Leadership Board - 14 May 2014
Item

Summary

Part 1
LGA Business
Review of Quarterly Performance
Report

To review the performance report for 2014

Communications Update –
December 2013 to March 2014

To update the Board on public affairs activity, media coverage
and review forthcoming priorities

Chief Executive’s Report

To hold the Chief Executive to account for delivery against the
business plan

LGA Executive Agenda

To run through the items to be considered by the LGA
Executive the following day

LGA Forward Plan

To consider topics for discussion at LGA Leadership Board,
LGA Executive and Councillors’ Forum

Note of the last meeting

To approve the note of the last meeting

Part 2 [CONFIDENTIAL]
Company Governance Structures

To consider a report on company governance structures
including proposals for a new Commercial Strategy
Board

After Leadership Board:
First 100 Days

Discussion for Leadership Board and Board Chairs

Councillors’ Forum
COUNCILLORS’ FORUM WILL NOT MEET IN MAY DUE TO THE LOCAL ELECTIONS TAKING
PLACE ON THE 22nd

LGA Executive
LGA EXECUTIVE WILL NOT MEET IN MAY DUE TO THE LOCAL ELECTIONS TAKING PLACE
ON THE 22nd

Page 60

Agenda Item 9

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

June 2014
LGA Leadership Board - 11 June 2014
Item

Summary

Part 1
LGA Business
General Assembly Motions

To agree General Assembly Motions for recommendation to
the Executive.

Annual Conference & Exhibition

Update on the 2014 Annual Conference & Exhibition

Special Interest Groups

To consider the annual reports of the LGA’s SIGs

LGA Consolidated Accounts
2013/14

To review the LGA’s consolidated statutory accounts for
2013/14

LGA Proportionality 2014/15

To endorse the proportionality figures for 2014/15

LGA Vice-Presidents 2014/15

To note nominations for Vice-Presidents appointed by the
political groups

Audit Committee Annual Report

To receive the Annual Report of the Audit Committee

Chief Executive’s Report

To hold the Chief Executive to account for delivery against the
business plan

LGA Executive Agenda

To run through the items to be considered by the LGA
Executive the following day

LGA Forward Plan

To consider topics for discussion at LGA Leadership Board,
LGA Executive and Councillors’ Forum

Note of the last meeting

To approve the note of the last meeting

Part 2 [CONFIDENTIAL]
Audit Committee Minutes

To consider the minutes of the Audit Committee meeting
on 10 June 2014

First 100 Days

To consider the First 100 Days final report prior to sign
off at Executive.

Councillors’ Forum - 12 June 2014
Edward Timpson, Parliamentary
Under Secretary of State for
Children & Families, and Carey
Oppenheim, Chief Executive of
the Early Intervention Foundation

Edward Timpson MP and Carey Oppenheim will address
the Forum

Chairman’s Report

To present the Chairman’s monthly report

Chairs of Boards’ Reports

To present the Chairs of Boards’ monthly reports

Digest of the last meeting

Page 61

Agenda Item 9

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Executive - 12 June 2014
Item
Part 1
LGA Business
General Assembly Motions
Note of LGA Leadership Board
Meeting
Note of the last LGA Executive
meeting
Part 2 [CONFIDENTIAL]
First 100 Days

Summary

To agree motions for debate at the General Assembly
To highlight key issues from the LGA Leadership Board
meeting the previous day
To agree the note of the last meeting.

To sign off the First 100 Days campaign for launch at the
Annual Conference

July 2014
LGA Leadership Board - 16 July 2014
Item

Summary

Part 1
LGA Business
Communications Update

To update the Board on public affairs activity, media coverage
and review forthcoming priorities

Review of Quarterly Performance
Report 2014/15

To review the performance report for the first quarter

Treasury Management Report

To consider the annual Treasury Management Report

Chief Executive’s Report

To hold the Chief Executive to account for delivery against the
business plan

LGA Executive Agenda

To run through the items to be considered by the LGA
Executive the following day

LGA Forward Plan

To consider topics for discussion at LGA Leadership Board,
LGA Executive and Councillors’ Forum

Note of the last meeting

To approve the note of the last meeting

Part 2 [CONFIDENTIAL]
Councillors’ Forum - 17 July 2014
Chairman’s Report

To present the Chairman’s monthly report

Chairs of Boards’ Reports

To present the Chairs of Boards’ monthly reports

Digest of the last meeting

Page 62

Agenda Item 9

LGA Leadership Board
9 April 2014

LGA Executive - 17 July 2014
Item
Part 1
LGA Business
Note of LGA Leadership Board
Meeting
Note of the last LGA Executive
meeting
Part 2 [CONFIDENTIAL]

Summary

To highlight key issues from the LGA Leadership Board
meeting the previous day
To agree the note of the last meeting.

Page 63

Page 64

Agenda Item 11

Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 11

Page 70

Agenda Item 12

Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 12

Page 72

Agenda Item 13

Document is Restricted

Page 73

Page 76

Agenda Item 13

Document is Restricted

Page 77

Page 106

Agenda Item 14

Document is Restricted

Page 107

Page 112

Agenda Item 14

Document is Restricted

Page 113

Local Government House is well
served by public transport. The
nearest mainline stations are:
Victoria and Waterloo: the local
underground stations are
St James’s Park (Circle and
District Lines), Westminster
(Circle, District and Jubilee Lines),
and Pimlico (Victoria Line) - all
about 10 minutes walk away.

Public transport

Tel: 020 7664 3131
Fax: 020 7664 3030
Email: info@local.gov.uk
Website: www.local.gov.uk

Local Government Association
Local Government House
Smith Square
London SW1P 3HZ

Page 114

88 Camden Town - Whitehall
- Westminster - Pimlico Clapham Common

C10 Canada Water - Pimlico Victoria

507 Waterloo - Victoria

Horseferry Road Car Park
Horseferry Road/Arneway
Street. Visit the website at
"""#"+,$-/2,$+4#&'(#)*69:4*/2&

Abingdon Street Car Park (off
Great College Street)

Car parks

Ro

Bus routes – Horseferry Road

y

For further details, please call
0845 900 1234 or visit the website
at www.cclondon.com

Broadway

eferr

Local Government House is
located within the congestion
charging zone.

Central London Congestion
Charging Zone

The nearest Barclays cycle hire
racks are in Smith Square. Cycle
racks are also available at
Local Government House.
Please telephone the LGA
on 020 7664 3131.

Cycling facilities
Br
oa
dw
ay

d
roun
on G
Strutt

Hors

Buses 3 and 87 travel along
Millbank, and the 507 between
Victoria and Waterloo stops in
Horseferry Road close to Dean
Bradley Street.

Crystal Palace - Brixton Oxford Circus

For further information, visit the
Transport for London website
at """#$%#&'(#)*

3

87 Wandsworth - Aldwych

Bus routes – Millbank

LGA location map

Bro

ad

ar y
c tu

Greeaatt
Co
C llege
St
S

San

5 minute
walking
distance

10 minute
walking
distance

Local
Government
House

Millban
k

ad

